
F:\Data\Shared Data\Agendas\Municipal Authority Agendas\2023 MA Agendas\11-13-23\11-13-2023 Agenda.doc 
 

 
 
 

EAST GOSHEN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 
November 13, 2023 

7:00 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 

• Ask if anyone will be taping the meeting 
         

2. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT/OTHER MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 

3. SEWER REPORTS 
• Director of Public Work’s Report 
• Pennoni Engineer’s Report 
• Big Fish Environmental Report 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• October 16, 2023 
            

5.  APPROVAL OF INVOICES   
• Pennoni   Invoice #1194870  $27.75 (paid) 
• Pennoni   Invoice #1194871  $209.25 (paid) 
• Pennoni   Invoice #1194872  $928.25 (paid) 
• Pennoni   Invoice #1194874  $8,612.50 (paid) 
• Philadelphia Bearing & Drive Solutions  Invoice #6522098    $17,834.75 (paid) 
• JWC Environmental  Invoice #116551  $16,542.00 (paid) 
• Gawthrop Greenwood Invoice #280886  $472.00 
• E & W Equipment Co.  Invoice #755   $80,991.00 

 
6. LIAISON REPORTS 

 
7. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

a. October 2023 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
• Hershey’s Mill Estates Sanitary Sewer Replacement: 

1. Review/Approval of Change Order #2 
2. Approval of Payment Application #3 (see Mark for certified payrolls) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



F:\Data\Shared Data\Agendas\Municipal Authority Agendas\2023 MA Agendas\11-13-23\11-13-2023 Agenda.doc 
 

 
 

9. 2023 Goals: 
 

Goal Status 

Ridley Creek plant compliance 
January, February, March, April, May, June, July, 
August, September, & October were in compliance and 
met all requirements.  

Continue to implement infiltration and inflow 
for the sewer system 

Ongoing 
 

RCSTP UV Disinfection System 
 

Delivered 
 

 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

11. CAPACITY REQUESTS 
• 301 Reservoir Rd 

 
12. ANY OTHER MATTER  

 
13. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS OF INTEREST  

 
14. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 
EAST GOSHEN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP 
                       1580 PAOLI PIKE, WEST CHESTER, PA 19380-6199 
                                                        610-692-7171 

 
 

 
 
 
To:  Municipal Authority 
 
From:  Mark Miller 
 
Re:  November 13, 2023, Monthly Report 
 
Monthly Flows: The average daily flow to West Goshen was 723,959 per day.  
  
Meters: Were read on a daily basis with no problems to report  
  
C.C. Collection: The pump stations were visited on daily basis with no problems to report. 
 
C.C. Interceptor: We inspected the lids and castings while we were clearing the right of 

way. 
  
R.C. Collection: The pump stations were visited on a daily basis with no problems to 

report. 
 
Ridley Creek Plant:  

o Transducer went bad in the Ridley STP wet well.  John Laidley came in to replace 
it and check the floats.  We’re looking into a float back-up system. 

o The UV system has been delivered. 
o The wet well electronic cabinet is rotted out.  We have ordered a replacement 

cabinet and are scheduling the work. 
 
Alarms:  7 (storm-related) 
  
PA One Calls:  182  
 
Monthly Rainfall: 1.76”  
 
Lateral Repairs or Caps:   Two laterals at 301 Reservoir Rd were dug & capped off. 
 



 

Christiana Executive Campus 

121 Continental Drive, Suite 207 

Newark, DE 19713 

T: 302-655-4451 

F: 302-654-2895 

 

www.pennoni.com 

EAST GOSHEN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 

November 8, 2023 

 

Ridley Creek Sewage Treatment Plant (RCSTP) 

• Caustic Soda Conversion – During a site visit on October 4, it was noticed that the tank’s outside 

insulation was cracked in some locations and loose/peeling off in others. We contacted the supplier, 

Pyrz, to alert them of this issue. Pyrz is scheduling to make the repairs, which we expect to happen in 

November. They indicated repairs will take about a half day of work to allow the spray insulation to 

set and coat it. 

Once the insulation is repaired and the outdoor emergency shower is installed, the tank can be put 

into operation.  

We previously prepared a draft O&M Manual information for the system that was submitted to the 

Township and operator for review. We will set up a meeting to review so that the Manual can be 

finalized. 

• UV Disinfection System – The temporary channel was delivered to the Township on August 24. The 

UV modules were delivered to the Township on October 30, and the submersible bypass pumps were 

delivered on November 2. The bypass hoses are scheduled for delivery the week of November 13. 

Upon receipt of the hoses, construction can begin, starting with the general contractor setting up the 

temporary channel and flow bypass system.   

An updated tentative construction schedule follows with completed work in italics:  

o Delivery of Permanent UV Equipment – October 30, 2023 

o Delivery of Bypass Pumps and Hoses – Week of November 13-17, 2023 

o Initiate Temporary Bypass Work – Mid-November 2023 

o Complete Temporary Bypass Work and Initiate Use of Bypass System – December 20, 2023 

o Two Week Trial and Sampling of Temporary Bypass System – December 20, 2023-January 3, 

2024 

o Township to Perform Concrete Channel Work – January 8-February 29, 2024 

o 2nd Notice to Proceed to Contractors: Permanent Work – March 1, 2024 

o Redirect Flow back to Permanent Channel (30 days of 2nd NTP) – April 1, 2024 

o Two Week Trial of New UV System in Permanent Channel –April 1-15, 2024 

o Install Second UV Module into Permanent Channel – April 16, 2024 

o Two Week Trial of Second New UV System in Permanent Channel – April 17-May 1, 2024 

o Construction Completed – Early May 2024 

• Generator #2 Replacement – Premium Power Services released the Cummins’ 500 kW diesel 

generator for fabrication in early March 2023. The lead times on the generator and ATS are 43 weeks 

and 22 weeks respectively, so we expect delivery of the entire system around January 2024.  

We are currently preparing electrical design and structural concrete pad plans for the new generator 

for use by the Township in construction. 



EGMAU23001 November 8, 2023 Page 2 

East Goshen Municipal Authority  Engineer’s Report 

 

P:\Projects\EGMA\Memos to Board\2023\Engineers Report 2023-11-08.docx 

• Operating Cost Analysis – We are continuing to coordinate with Scott Towler for the evaluation of 

industry WWTP operating costs in an effort to benchmark RCSTP costs against other similar WWTPs. 

Sanitary Sewer Pipe Rehab 

• Chester Creek Sewer Rehab – We are reviewing shop drawings and construction submittals from the 

contractor, Insituform. They will schedule the work upon approval of those submittals.  

• Hershey’s Mill Estates – The contractor is scheduled to complete minor punchlist work – removing 

E&S controls, cleaning up construction debris, and opening/unsealing new residential cleanout lids – 

by November 10. We will perform a site visit to verify the remaining punchlist work has been 

completed. 

The contractor submitted the 3rd (final) pay application, and we provided a payment 

recommendation. We also processed Change Order #2 to formally document changes to as-built 

quantities for unit price bid items.  

• LSA Grant Application – We are assembling information and assisting Dave Ware with preparation of 

the grant application for pipe lining and rehabilitation of the Chester Creek Interceptor Phases 1 and 

2 and the remainder of pipe lining in Supplee Valley. The application is due November 30. 

New Connections 

• Millstone Meadows (1010 Hershey Mill Road) – We received the 3rd submission of Subdivision and 

Land Development Plans. We are currently reviewing the plans, including the revised sanitary sewer 

extension design. 

• 301 Reservoir Road (5-Lot Residential Subdivision) – We received a revised submission of Subdivision 

and Land Development Plans that is currently under review. We also discussed modifications to the 

proposed sewer extension alignment with Mark Miller. 

• 1712 E. Boot Road – The low pressure sewer was constructed via directional drilling from the property 

and connected to the public sewer manhole. We performed an inspection of the completed work at 

the manhole connection, and it was found acceptable with the exception of debris/mud that needs 

to be cleaned from the manhole channel. The grinder pump has not yet been installed. 

• 14 Reservoir Road – We reviewed a revised Subdivision and Land Development plan submission, 

which includes connection of one new lot to public sewer via grinder pump. We provided outstanding 

comments to the Township and Applicant. 

 

END OF REPORT



 

 

RCSTP Monthly Operations Report 

November 2023 

Executive Summary 
 
The Ridley Creek sewage treatment plant outfall 001 has met all effluent limitations regarding 
water quality for October 2023. All supplemental reports were submitted for September. 2023 
Chemical usage utilized for total alkalinity remained consistent with previous months. Aluminum 
sulfate solution volumes decreased slightly to a daily average of 70.7 from the previous standard 
of 72.5 gallons per day. No significant mechanical or operational issues were observed during the 
sludge dewatering equipment or SBR treatment process. Sludge dewatering experienced no 
mechanical issues impacting production. There were no odor complaints during the month.      
 

Table 1 

 
 
 

Treatment Process Operation  

Table 1 illustrates the final effluent composite sample data reported for outfall 001 for October 
2023. The monthly average total phosphorus was reported as 0.14 mg/L compared to the permit 
limitation of 0.50 mg/L. The TSS samples were consistently in single digits. The results remain 
below the weekly maximum of 15 mg/L. The monthly average TSS is reported as 4.5 mg/L 
compared to the discharge limitation of 10 mg/L.     

The final effluent test results demonstrate that the biological treatment performed well during 
October. The sequencing batch reactors (SBRs) numbered 2, 3, and 4 were in service.  

 

Flow
MGD 

Average mg/L
lbs/ 

month mg/L
lbs/ 

month mg/L
lbs/ 

month mg/L
lbs/ 

month mg/L
lbs/ 

month
Geo 

Mean
Geo 

Mean
0.75 10 62 Report Report 10 62 2.5 44 0.5 3 200 1,000

Inst. Max 20 94 15 94 5 1
          Sample Date
October 3, 2023 0.248 2.0 4.1 8.42 17.4 4.4 9.1 0.10 0.21 0.17 0.35 44 1.6435

October 10, 2023 0.257 2.0 4.3 7.31 15.7 4.4 9.4 0.10 0.21 0.16 0.34 1 0.0000
October 17, 2023 0.264 2.0 4.4 6.85 15.1 4.0 8.8 0.10 0.22 0.17 0.37 25 1.3979
October 26, 2023 0.236 2.0 3.9 9.24 18.2 4.8 9.4 0.10 0.20 0.10 0.20 15 1.1761
October 31, 2023 0.241 2.0 4.0 5.98 12.0 5.0 10.0 0.10 0.20 0.10 0.20 5 0.6990

Average 0.249 2.0 4.2 7.56 15.7 4.5 9.4 0.10 0.21 0.14 0.29 18 0.9833
Minimum 0.236 2.0 3.9 5.98 12.0 4.0 8.8 0.10 0.20 0.10 0.20 1 0.0000
Maximum 0.264 2.0 4.4 9.24 18.2 5.0 10.0 0.10 0.22 0.17 0.37 44 1.6435

Fecal Coliform

October 2023- Final Effluent - Outfall 001

NPDES Permit 
Discharge 

Limitations

CBOD5 Total Nitrogen TSS NH4-N Total Phosphorus



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Table 2 illustrates the final effluent composite sample data reported for outfall 002 for October 
2023. 

Table 2 

 
The influent wastewater pollutant concentrations and loading entering the wastewater treatment 
facility generally remained within the design concentration and organic loading values. The TSS 
and CBOD5 monthly average weekly concentrations were usually observed to be within the design 
parameters for the treatment process. 

Table 3 presents the pollutant data for the influent wastewater collected at the doghouse manhole 
during October 2023. 

Table 3

 

 

PA DEP 

No activity 

Flow

MGD 
Average mg/L

lbs/ 
month mg/L

lbs/ 
month mg/L

lbs/ 
month mg/L

lbs/ 
month mg/L

lbs/ 
month

Geo 
Mean

Geo 
Mean

0.135 25 Report Report 30 7.0 44 0.5 3 200 1,000
40 45

October 3, 2023 0.0328 2.0 0.55 8.42 2.30 4.4 1.20 0.10 0.21 0.17 0.35 44 1.6435
October 10, 2023 0.0321 2.0 0.54 7.31 1.96 4.4 1.18 0.10 0.21 0.16 0.34 1 0.0000
October 17, 2023 0.0322 2.0 0.54 6.85 1.84 4.0 1.07 0.10 0.22 0.17 0.37 25 1.3979
October 26, 2023 0.0307 2.0 0.51 9.24 2.37 4.8 1.23 0.10 0.20 0.10 0.20 15 1.1761
October 31, 2023 0.0287 2.0 0.48 5.98 1.43 5.0 1.20 0.10 0.20 0.10 0.20 5 0.6990

Average 0.0313 2.0 0.52 7.56 1.98 4.52 1.18 0.10 0.21 0.14 0.29 18 0.9833
Minimum 0.0287 2.0 0.48 5.98 1.43 4.00 1.07 0.10 0.20 0.10 0.20 1 0.0000
Maximum 0.0328 2.0 0.55 9.24 2.37 5.00 1.23 0.10 0.22 0.17 0.37 44 1.6435

Phosphorus,Total Fecal Coliform

October 2022 - Applebrook - Out Fall 002

NPDES Permit 
Discharge 

Limitations

CBOD5 Total Nitrogen TSS NH4-N 

Flow
mg/L lbs/day mg/L lbs/day mg/L lbs/day mg/L lbs/day mg/L lbs/day mg/L lbs/day

335 2,098 NA NA 320 2,001 32 200 48 301 9.1 57

October 3, 2023 0.318 679 1,799 532 1,409 860 2,278 39.6 105 82.3 218 10.1 26.8
October 10, 2023 0.308 299 768 335 860 437 1,122 39.9 102 63.3 163 6.53 16.8
October 17, 2023 0.308 181 465 204 524 120 308 42.0 108 54.9 141 6.63 17.0
October 26, 2023 0.354 220 650 149 440 196 579 45.9 136 57.5 170 6.79 20.1
October 31, 2023 0.253 448 945 sample under review 603 1,271 41.6 88 76.7 162 8.58 18.1

Average 0.308 365 925 305 808 443 1,112 41.8 108 66.9 171 7.73 19.7
Minimum 0.253 181 465 149.0 440 120 308 39.6 88 54.9 141 6.53 16.8
Maximum 0.354 679 1,799 532 1,409 860 2,278 45.9 136 82.3 218 10.10 26.8

MGD 
Average

 October 2023 - Influent Wastewaster

Design Basis
BOD5 CBOD5 TSS NH4-N TKN, mg/L

Phosphorus,Total
, mg/L

          Sample Date



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Pennoni Associates 

The UV system replacement project continues. 

Significant Rainfall  

During October, there were eight (8) days when rainfall occurred. The total rainfall for October 
was a total 1.97 inches.   

Chemical Data 

October 2023 

Chemical Daily Average Total Monthly 

Soda Ash, pounds 300 9,300 

Aluminum Sulfate solution, gal 70.7 2,192 

Sludge Dewatering, gal* 16,301 423,836 

     *19 days of sludge dewatering 

 

Minor Preventative Maintenance 

Flushed chemical feed lines to the SBRs. 

Cleaned final effluent weir trough daily. 

Skimmed surface of disc filters daily 

Drained and cleaned disc filters bi-weekly. 

Cleaned buildings and laboratory. 

Flow Data 

October 2023 

Flow Meter Location Total Volume for 
Month, MG 

Average Daily 
Flow, gpd 

Daily Maximum 
Flow, gpd 

Influent Wastewater to 
Screening Building* 10.571 340,988 836,360 

Influent Wastewater to 
SBRs* 11.991 386,806 444,776 

Internal Recycle** 2.104 67,872 406,126 

Treated Effluent to Disc 
Filters 11.645 375,640 428,106 

Final Effluent Discharge 

 
8.220 265,000 304,000 

Applebrook Golf Course 1.031 33,270 37,184 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

 



MA 10-16-23 draft 1  

      DRAFT 1 
EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 2 

MEETING MINUTES 3 
     October 16, 2023  4 

 5 
The East Goshen Township Municipal Authority held their regular meeting on Monday,   6 
October 16, 2023 at 7:00 pm. at the Township Building. Members in attendance are indicated in 7 
BOLD:  8 
Kevin Cummings, Chairman  9 
Dana Pizarro, Vice Chairman  10 
Jack Yahraes 11 
Carmen Battavio 12 
Walter Wujcik 13 
 14 
 Also in attendance were: Mark Miller (Director of Public Works), Mike Ellis (Pennoni 15 
representative), Ellen Koopman (Attorney), Dave Ware (Finance Director), and Michael Lynch 16 
(Township Supervisor), and Scott Towler (on phone)  17 
 18 
  19 
COMMON ACRONYMS: 20 
ATS – Automatic Transfer Switch 21 
BFES – Big Fish Environmental Services  MA- Municipal Authority 22 
BOS – Board of Supervisors   NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 23 
CB – Conservancy Board    PC – Planning Commission 24 
DEP – Department of Environmental Protection PM – Prevention Maintenance  25 
EPA – Environmental protection Agency  PR – Park & Recreation Board 26 
HC – Historical Commission   RCSTP – Ridley Creek Sewer Treatment Plant  27 
I&I – Inflow & Infiltration    SBR – Sequencing Batch Reactor 28 
LCSTP – Lockwood Chase Sewer Treatment Plant SSO – Sanitary System Overflow 29 
PWD – Public Works Department      WAS – Waste Activated Sludge 30 
 31 
Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance   32 
Kevin called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.  33 
He asked for a moment of silence for our First Responders and Military.  34 
He asked if anyone would be recording the meeting.  There was no response. 35 
 36 
 37 
Chairman’s Report 38 
None 39 
      40 
SEWER REPORTS 41 
1.  Director of Public Works, Mark Miller’s report for October 16, 2023 42 
 43 
Monthly Flows – The average daily flow to West Goshen was 726,075 gallons per day.  44 
 45 
Meters:   The meters were read on a daily basis with no problems to report.   46 
  47 
        48 
 49 



MA 10-16-23 draft 2  

C.C. Collection:   The pump stations were visited on a daily basis with no problems to report. 1 
 2 
C.C. Interceptor:  We inspected the lids and castings while we were clearing the right of way.  3 
  4 
R.C. Collection:  The pump stations were visited on a daily basis with no problems to report. 5 
   6 
Ridley Creek Plant:   7 
 •   Applebrook pump burned up and was replaced. 8 

•   Met with Erika from Pennoni to go over the work that needs to be done for the new 9 
generator. 10 
•   New UV System 11 

ο  Temporary tank channel arrived. 12 
ο  Pumps, hose, and control panels are ordered. 13 
ο  Third pump ordered as a designated spare in case one of the main pumps goes 14 
down. 15 

 16 
Alarms:  12 (storm related) 17 
 18 
PA 1 Calls:  194 for the month 19 
 20 
Monthly Rainfall:  5.8 inches of rain for the month of September 21 
 22 
Lateral Repairs or Caps: Four lateral repairs were done on private systems.  Inspections were done 23 
by Public Works. We are picking up the repairs on the PA One Calls. 24 
 25 
 26 
2.   Pennoni Engineer’s Report dated October 13, 2023  27 
 28 
Ridley Creek Sewage Treatment Plant (RCSTP) 29 

• Caustic Soda Conversion – Once the outdoor emergency shower is installed, the tank can be 30 
put into operation. We also prepared a draft O&M Manual information for the system that 31 
was submitted to the Township and operator for review.  32 

During a site visit on October 4, it was noticed that the tank’s outside insulation was cracked 33 
in some locations and loose/peeling off in others. We contacted the supplier, Pyrz, to alert 34 
them of this issue. Pyrz then contacted the manufacturer, Assmann, to have this issue 35 
resolved. Assmann will ship Pyrz needed materials for repairs. After the materials are 36 
received, Pyrz will schedule a site visit to re-apply the insulation and add the mastic paint to 37 
repair the parts that have come loose. It will take about a half day of work to allow the spray 38 
insulation to set and coat it. 39 

• UV Disinfection System – The temporary channel was delivered to the Township on August 24. As of 40 
September 29, Glasco stated that the units have been fabricated but have not been tested yet. A 41 
date for testing the units has not been set. After testing is complete, the UV system would be able to 42 
be shipped in about two weeks. We are still awaiting a definitive delivery date. 43 



MA 10-16-23 draft 3  

We continued coordination with vendors and obtained additional cost quotes for the bypass pumps 1 
with control boxes. Quotes for the jib crane were previously obtained. The Township has placed 2 
orders for the jib crane and submersible pumps with control boxes. The lead times for the jib crane 3 
and pumps are 3-4 weeks after orders are placed. We are waiting on definitive delivery dates for the 4 
products. . 5 

An updated tentative construction schedule follows:  6 

o Initiate Temporary Bypass Work – Week of October 23, 2023 7 
o Delivery of Permanent UV Equipment – Mid-to-Late October 2023 8 
o Delivery of Jib Crane and Bypass Pumps – Early-Mid November 2023 9 
o Complete Temporary Bypass Work and Initiate Use of Bypass System – December 20, 2023 10 
o Two Week Trial and Sampling of Temporary Bypass System – December 20, 2023-January 3, 11 

2024 12 
o Township to Perform Concrete Channel Work – January 8-February 29, 2024 13 
o 2nd Notice to Proceed to Contractors: Permanent Work – March 1, 2024 14 
o Redirect Flow back to Permanent Channel (30 days of 2nd NTP) – April 1, 2024 15 
o Two Week Trial of New UV System in Permanent Channel –April 1-15, 2024 16 
o Install Second UV Module into Permanent Channel – April 16, 2024 17 
o Two Week Trial of Second New UV System in Permanent Channel – April 17-May 1, 2024 18 
o Construction Completed – Early May 2024 19 

• Generator #2 Replacement – Premium Power Services released the Cummins’ 500 kW diesel 20 
generator for fabrication in early March 2023. The lead times on the generator and ATS are 43 weeks 21 
and 22 weeks respectively, so we expect delivery of the entire system around January 2024.  22 

A site meeting with Pennoni and the Township was held on October 4 to discuss the options for the 23 
new generator layout. It was decided that installing the new generator slightly north of the existing 24 
generator’s location would require the least amount of labor and be the most cost-effective option. 25 
We are preparing electrical and structural concrete pad plans for this layout.  26 

• Operating Cost Analysis – We are continuing to coordinate with Scott Towler for the evaluation of 27 
industry WWTP operating costs in an effort to benchmark RCSTP costs against other similar WWTPs. 28 

Sanitary Sewer Pipe Rehab 29 

• Chester Creek Sewer Rehab – The contractor, Insituform, provided their bonds and insurance 30 
documents. All were found acceptable. The contract was subsequently executed. A pre-31 
construction meeting with the contractor was held on September 27. The Notice to Proceed 32 
letter is anticipated to be issued by the end of October. 33 

• Hershey’s Mill Estates – Most punchlist work and permanent restoration is complete. There are a few 34 
remaining minor punchilst items that were identified in a subsequent inspection of which we will 35 
notify the contractor. 36 



MA 10-16-23 draft 4  

• Ridley Creek Exposed Sewer Rehab – A full PADEP permit application has been prepared 1 
and will be submitted to PADEP in follow-up to the emergency authorization now that 2 
construction has been completed.  3 

New Connections 4 

• 1010 Hershey Mill Road (Moser) – No activity since our last report. 5 

• 301 Reservoir Road (5-Lot Residential Subdivision) – No activity since our last report. 6 

• 1712 E. Boot Road – No activity since our last report. 7 

• 14 Reservoir Road – No activity since our last report. 8 
 9 
3.  Big Fish Environmental Services –  10 
  The Ridley Creek sewage treatment plant outfall 001 has met all effluent limitations regarding water 11 
quality for September 2023. All supplemental reports were submitted for the month of August 2023 12 
with the eDMR.  Discharge to the Applebrook irrigation lagoon was restarted on September 21st.   13 
Chemical usage utilized for total alkalinity remained consistent with previous months.  Aluminum 14 
sulfate solution volumes increased slightly to a daily average of 72.5 gpd from the previous average 15 
of 68.6 gallons per day.  No significant mechanical or operational issues were observed during the 16 
sludge dewatering equipment or SBR treatment process.  Sludge dewatering experienced some 17 
mechanical issues impacting production. There were no odor complaints during the month.  18 
Walter and Dana mentioned that the tables were all wrong.  Scott will correct them.  Carmen 19 
mentioned the foam overage on page 3 and asked about the clarity. 20 
Kevin voiced concern about the insulation in the new tank which appears to be pulling off.  21 
Mike asked about microplastics.  The EPA is working on rules for this.  Scott spoke about all of the 22 
new contaminates/hazardous materials. 23 
 24 
Approval of Minutes 25 
The minutes of the September 11, 2023 meeting were approved as amended. 26 
 27 
Approval of Invoices 28 
1. Carmen moved to approve payment of the following Pennoni invoices:   29 

a.  Invoice #1190712 $     464.50 30 
b.  Invoice #1190713 $  1,716.50 31 
c.  Invoice #1190714 $10,769.75 32 
d.  Invoice #1190715 $13,951.25 33 

 Dana seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 34 
2.  Walter moved to approve payment of the following Gawthrop Greenwood invoices: 35 

a.  Invoice #277578  $1,146.00 36 
b.  Invoice #279612  $   658.50 37 

 Carmen seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 38 
3.  Dana moved to approve payment of Mainline Concrete & Supply Invoice #525430 in the 39 

amount of $159.75.  Walter seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 40 
4. Carmen moved to approve payment of Gap Power Invoice #1870216 in the amount of $2,977.97. 41 

Walter seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 42 



MA 10-16-23 draft 5  

New Business 1 
1. Millstone Meadows/1010 Hershey Mill Road – T.R. Moser, developer, was present.  East Goshen 2 
is asking them to pay for the upgrade of the pump station.  Mr. Moser explained the process and 3 
supplied the utility plan.   4 
2.  Legal Services – Kevin signed the approval of 2024 fees for Legal Services.  5 
 6 
 7 
Liaison Reports 8 
1. Board of Supervisors – Mike Lynch reported that the BOS will be discussing the General Fund 9 
Budget. There is no plan for a tax increase. 10 
 11 
Financial Reports 12 
Dave Ware supplied the following report: 13 
Year to date September 2023, the Municipal Authority recorded $545,467 in revenues (primarily 14 
from Sewer Operating transfers and Sewer Capital Reserve transfers and tapping fees) and $541,910 15 
in expenses (Engineering Services, Audit fees, Administrative Wages, Hershey’s Mill Estates Sewer 16 
costs, Caustic Soda project costs, capital costs at the Ridley Creek Sanitary Treatment Plant, capital 17 
improvements to the Westtown Way Pump station, auditor and legal fees).  The net result of 18 
operations is $3,557.   As of September 30, 2023, the fund balance was ($50,947).  This negative 19 
balance is a function of balance versus cash reporting.  There is $59,676 in invoices being held so the 20 
actual cash balance is $8,729. 21 
 22 
Old Business 23 
None 24 
 25 
Goals 26 
The Goals were reviewed.   27 
  28 
Capacity Requests - None 29 
 30 
Any Other Matter – None 31 
 32 
Correspondence-  None 33 
 34 
Public Comment - None 35 
 36 
Adjournment 37 
There being no further business Carmen moved to adjourn the meeting.  Dana seconded the motion.  38 
The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:34 pm.  39 
The next regular meeting will be held on Monday, November 13, 2023 at 7:00 pm. 40 
 41 
Respectfully submitted, 42 
 43 
 44 
Ruth Kiefer, Recording Secretary 45 





























 

INVOICE 

E & W Equipment Co., LLC 
 

INVOICE #755 

DATE: NOVEMBER 1, 2023 

 
 

 

TO Mr. Mark Miller  

East Goshen Township Municipal Authority 

PAYABLE  

TO 

E&W Equipment Company, LLC 

901 School Street 

Moosic, PA 18507 

570-677-1919 

    

 

SALESPERSON 
JOB 

 
PURCHASE ORDER PAYMENT TERMS 

n/a 
Ridley Creek WWTP 

UV System 
Signed proposal 

4/8/2022 
Upon receipt 

 

ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY LINE TOTAL 

1 UV Disinfection system (60% upon delivery) $134,985.00 0.6 $80,991.00 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

SUBTOTAL $80,991.00 

TAX Exempt 

TOTAL $80,991.00 

  

 

 

 



From: Michael Ellis
To: Mark Miller
Cc: Lynn Werkheiser; David Ware; Derek Davis; Erika Addison
Subject: FW: UV System Invoice
Date: Wednesday, November 8, 2023 10:24:40 AM
Attachments: 2023-11-01 Invoice 755 East Goshen UV - 60 percent on delivery.pdf

signed proposal UV System East Goshen Township.pdf
Importance: High

Mark,
 
It is our understanding that the remainder of the UV system equipment was delivered on October
30. Please confirm. If so, we recommend payment of this invoice as submitted for 60%. This is
consistent with the terms of their attached proposal. There is 10% remaining to be paid upon system
start-up.
 
We recommend this 60% payment be included on the MA agenda.
 
Mike

Michael Ellis, PE
Municipal Division Manager

Pennoni
121 Continental Drive, Suite 207 | Newark, DE 19713
Direct: +1 302-351-5236 | Mobile: +1 302-561-4235
www.pennoni.com | MEllis@Pennoni.com

From: James Connor <jconnor@ewequipment.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 8:04 AM
To: Mark S. Miller (mmiller@eastgoshen.org) <mmiller@eastgoshen.org>
Cc: Michael Ellis <MEllis@Pennoni.com>
Subject: RE: UV System Invoice
Importance: High
 
Mark,
 
Hope all is well.  The invoice for the next 60% of the UV System upon delivery is attached.  Please
forward this to accounting for payment.
 
Also, please keep us updated with the progress at the site.  We will need a couple of weeks notice
before the startup of the temporary UV unit.
 
Thanks!
 
Jim
 

mailto:MEllis@Pennoni.com
mailto:mmiller@eastgoshen.org
mailto:lwerkheiser@eastgoshen.org
mailto:dware@eastgoshen.org
mailto:ddavis@eastgoshen.org
mailto:eaddison@Pennoni.com
https://www.pennoni.com/



 


INVOICE 


E & W Equipment Co., LLC 
 


INVOICE #755 


DATE: NOVEMBER 1, 2023 


 
 


 


TO Mr. Mark Miller  


East Goshen Township Municipal Authority 


PAYABLE  


TO 


E&W Equipment Company, LLC 


901 School Street 


Moosic, PA 18507 


570-677-1919 


    


 


SALESPERSON 
JOB 


 
PURCHASE ORDER PAYMENT TERMS 


n/a 
Ridley Creek WWTP 


UV System 
Signed proposal 


4/8/2022 
Upon receipt 


 


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY LINE TOTAL 


1 UV Disinfection system (60% upon delivery) $134,985.00 0.6 $80,991.00 


     


     


     


     


     


     


     


     


     


SUBTOTAL $80,991.00 


TAX Exempt 


TOTAL $80,991.00 


  


 


 


 




































James P. Connor, P.E.
E & W Equipment Company, LLC
In Association with Iron Horse Environmental
901 School St.
Moosic, PA 18507
Mobile: 570-677-1919
Fax: 866-297-3372
jconnor@ewequipment.com
 

From: James Connor 
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 11:08 AM
To: Mark S. Miller (mmiller@eastgoshen.org) <mmiller@eastgoshen.org>
Cc: Michael Ellis <mellis@pennoni.com>
Subject: UV System Invoice
Importance: High
 
Mark,
 
Hope all is well with you.  Going through my records, I realized that I never sent in the 30% invoice
for the UV System when the drawings were approved.  It is now attached.  Can you please forward
this on to accounting for payment?
 
See you at the pre-bid next week.
 
Jim
 

James P. Connor, P.E.
E & W Equipment Company, LLC
In Association with Iron Horse Environmental
901 School St.
Moosic, PA 18507
Mobile: 570-677-1919
Fax: 866-297-3372
jconnor@ewequipment.com
 

mailto:jconnor@ewequipment.com
mailto:mmiller@eastgoshen.org
mailto:mmiller@eastgoshen.org
mailto:mellis@pennoni.com
mailto:jconnor@ewequipment.com






























Christiana Executive Campus 

121 Continental Drive, Suite 207 

Newark, DE 19713 

T: 302-655-4451 

F: 302-654-2895 

 

www.pennoni.com 

 

November 7, 2023 

 

EGMAU21004 

 

Mark Miller, Director of Public Works 

East Goshen Township 

1580 Paoli Pike 

West Chester, PA  19380 

 

Re: Change Order No. 2 

Hershey’s Mill Estates Sanitary Sewer Replacement, Contract No. HME-2022 

 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

 

We have prepared Change Order No. 2 for the subject project. This change order formalizes as-built quantity 

changes for unit price bid items. 

 

This change order increases quantities for 6”, 24”, and 36” HDPE storm sewer pipe installation and rock removal. 

Additionally, quantities for 8” gravity sewer pipe installation with 2A stone or imported soil backfill, 8” and 12” 

gravity sewer pipe installation with excavated soil backfill, 6” and 8” diameter sewer laterals, cleanout 

replacement, concrete curb replacement, miscellaneous excavation and backfill, and 15” HDPE storm sewer pipe 

installation have been reduced per the as-built measurements.  

 

Change Order No. 2 reflects a net decrease in contract price of $78,572.00; the resultant contract price is thereby 

$665,668.00. We recommend approval of Change Order No. 2 as presented herein. 

 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

PENNONI ASSOCIATES INC. 

 
 

Michael J. Ellis, PE 

Associate Vice President 

 

Enclosures:  Change Order No. 2 

  

/ela 

 

cc:  Antonio Tavares, Joao & Bradley 

  Sheila Allman, Joao & Bradley 

  Dave Ware, Township Finance Director 

  Derek Davis, Township Manager 



CONTRACT NO.: HME-2022 DATE: 7-Nov-23

Hershey's Mill Estates Sanitary Sewer Replacement PROJECT NO.: EGMAU21004

CHANGE ORDER NO.: 2 LOCATION: East Goshen Township

TO: (Contractor) Joao & Bradley Construction Co., Inc. Chester County, Pennsylvania 

You are hereby requested to comply with the following changes from the contract plans and specifications.

ITEM NO. DECREASE IN INCREASE IN

CONTRACT PRICE CONTRACT PRICE

(1) (3) (4)

1

$3,105.00

$280.00

$5,942.00

$540.00

2

($37,563.75)

($10,125.00)

($5,600.00)

($8,340.00)
($5,700.00)
($3,600.00)

($8,930.25)

($3,300.00)

($3,780.00)

($1,500.00)

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE DUE TO THIS CHANGE ORDER

TOTAL DECREASE ($88,439.00)

TOTAL INCREASE $9,867.00

NET (INCREASE/DECREASE) CONTRACT PRICE ($78,572.00)

(DIFFERENCE BETWEEN COL. (3) AND (4))

The sum of $78,572.00  is hereby deducted from the total contract price, and the total adjusted contract
price to date is thereby $665,688.00 .

This document shall become an amendment to the contract and all provisions of the contract will apply hereto.

Accepted by:

Contractor Date

Recommended by:

Engineer Date

Approved by:

Owner Date

The following Bid Item estimated quantities are decreased:

8. 8" C900, DR-18 Gravity Sewer Pipe with Excavated Soil
Backfill is decreased to 1,836.75 LF
9. 12" C900, DR-18 Gravity Sewer Pipe with Excavated Soil
Backfill is decreased to 168 LF
10. 6" and 8" C900, DR-18 Lateral is decreased to 111 LF
11. Replace Cleanouts is decreased to 8 EA

A4. 8" C900, DR-18 Gravity Sewer Pipe with Excavated Soil
Backfill is decreased to 108 LF

7. 8" C900, DR-18 Gravity Sewer Pipe with 2A Stone or
Imported Soil Backfill is decreased to 174.75 LF

20. Miscellaneous Excavation and Backfill is decreased to
142.79 CY
A3. 8" C900, DR-18 Gravity Sewer Pipe with Excavated Soil
Backfill is decreased to 99 LF

The following Bid Item estimated quantities are increased:

16. 24" HDPE Storm Sewer Pipe is increased to 58 LF

17. 36" HDPE Storm Sewer Pipe is increased to 27 LF

A6. 6" HDPE Storm Sewer Pipe is increased to 120 LF

19. Replace Concrete Curb is decreased to 0 LF

A8. 15" HDPE Storm Sewer Pipe is decreased to 0 LF

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES-QUANTITIES,UNITS,UNIT

PRICES,CHANGES IN COMPLETION SCHEDULE, ETC.

(2)

21. Rock Removal is increased to 54.71 CY

11/7/2023

11-7-2023



 

Christiana Executive Campus 

121 Continental Drive, Suite 207 

Newark, DE 19713 

T: 302-655-4451 

F: 302-654-2895 

 

www.pennoni.com 

November 8, 2023 

 

EGMAU21004 

 

Mark Miller, Director of Public Works 

East Goshen Township 

1580 Paoli Pike 

West Chester, PA  19380 

 

RE: Payment Application #3 Recommendation Letter  

 Hershey’s Mill Estates Sanitary Sewer Replacement, Contract No. HME-2022 

  

Dear Mr. Miller: 

 

The Contractor, Joao & Bradley Construction Co., Inc., has submitted the third and final invoice for work 

completed for the subject project. We have observed the work-in-progress, including sanitary sewer pipe 

installation, manhole installation, bypass pumping, storm sewer headwall installation, and storm sewer pipe 

installation, and we confirm that the described work has been completed.  

 

The Contractor still needs to provide the closeout documents, including the Maintenance Bond, Statement of 

Surety, and the Contractor’s Release.  

 

We have reviewed the attached Payment Application #3 provided by the Contractor, and we recommend 

approval in the amount of $111,778.15, conditioned that payment not be made until the closeout documents 

are provided. Overall, the contract is 100% complete.  

 

The certified payrolls for the entire project are also attached. 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at your convenience. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

PENNONI ASSOCIATES INC. 

 
 

Michael J. Ellis, PE 

Associate Vice President 

 

/ela 

 

Enclosures:  Application and Certification for Payment #3 

  Project Quantities Summary Report 

  Certified Payrolls 

   

cc:  Antonio Tavares, Joao & Bradley 

  Sheila Allman, Joao & Bradley 

  Dave Ware, Township Finance Director 

  Derek Davis, Township Manager 



TO
 (

O
w

ne
r)

: 
P

R
O

JE
C

T:
A

P
P

LI
C

A
TI

O
N

 N
O

:
3 

- 
FI

N
A

L
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
:

P
ER

IO
D

 F
R

O
M

:
01

-S
ep

-2
3

X
O

W
N

ER
P

ER
IO

D
 T

O
:  

12
-S

ep
-2

3
X

EN
G

IN
EE

R
A

TT
EN

TI
O

N
:

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

:
Jo

ao
 &

 B
ra

dl
ey

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

o.
, I

nc
.

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

N
O

:
H

M
E-

20
22

X
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
D

A
TE

:

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 A

P
P

LI
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
O

R
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

C
H

A
N

G
E 

O
R

D
E

R
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
D

ED
U

C
TI

O
N

S
T

he
 p

re
se

nt
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
t f

or
 th

is
 C

on
tr

ac
t i

s 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
  

O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T
 S

U
M

$
73

9,
26

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
  

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
th

is
 M

on
th

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

b
y 

C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s

$
-7

3,
57

2.
00

N
um

be
r

D
at

e 
A

pp
ro

ve
d

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 S
U

M
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
$

66
5,

68
8.

00
2

07
-N

ov
-2

3
(7

8,
57

2.
00

)
$ 

  

T
O

TA
L 

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D
 &

 S
TO

R
E

D
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
$

66
5,

68
8.

00
TO

TA
LS

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
  

(7
8,

57
2.

00
)

$ 
  

 (
C

ol
um

n 
G

 o
n 

G
70

3)
N

et
 c

ha
ng

e 
by

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s

(7
3,

57
2.

00
)

$ 
  

R
ET

A
IN

A
G

E
0%

$
0.

00

Th
e 

un
de

rs
ig

ne
d 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ce
rt

ifi
es

 th
at

 to
 th

e 
be

st
 o

f h
is

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

be
lie

f t
he

 W
or

k 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

T
O

TA
L 

E
A

R
N

E
D

 L
E

S
S

 R
ET

A
IN

A
G

E
$

66
5,

68
8.

00
P

ay
m

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 a
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
u-

m
en

ts
, t

ha
t a

ll 
am

ou
nt

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pa
id

 b
y 

hi
m

 fo
r 

W
or

k 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

LE
S

S
 P

R
EV

IO
U

S
 C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
ES

 F
O

R
 P

A
Y

M
EN

T
$

55
3,

90
9.

85
pr

ev
io

us
 C

er
tif

ic
at

es
 fo

r 
P

ay
m

en
t w

er
e 

is
su

ed
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
fr

om
 th

e 
O

w
ne

r, 
an

d 
th

at
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 s
ho

w
n 

he
re

in
 is

 n
ow

 d
ue

.
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 P
A

Y
M

EN
T 

D
U

E
$

11
1,

77
8.

15

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

:
Jo

ao
 &

 B
ra

dl
ey

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny
, I

nc
.

S
ta

te
 o

f: 
P

EN
N

S
Y

LV
A

N
IA

C
ou

nt
y 

of
: N

O
R

TH
A

M
P

TO
N

B
y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

D
at

e:
S

ub
sc

rib
ed

 a
nd

 s
w

or
n 

to
 b

ef
or

e 
m

e 
th

is
 

N
ot

ar
y 

P
ub

lic
:

M
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 e
xp

ire
s:

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

TI
FI

C
A

TE
 F

O
R

 P
A

Y
M

EN
T

A
M

O
U

N
T

 C
E

R
T

IF
IE

D
$

(A
tta

ch
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
if 

am
ou

nt
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

di
ffe

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
pp

lie
d 

fo
r.)

In
 a

cc
or

d
an

ce
 w

it
h 

th
e 

C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

on
-s

it
e 

ob
se

r-
E

N
G

IN
E

ER
:

va
ti

on
s 

an
d

 th
e 

d
at

a 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n,

 th
e 

E
ng

in
ge

er
ce

rt
if

ie
s 

to
 th

e 
O

w
ne

r 
th

at
 th

e 
W

or
k 

ha
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
ed

 to
 th

e 
p

oi
nt

B
y:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

D
at

e:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

in
d

ic
at

ed
; t

ha
t t

o 
th

e 
b

es
t o

f h
is

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d

 b
el

ie
f

th
e 

q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
w

or
k 

is
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

;
T

hi
s 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
e 

is
 n

ot
 n

eg
ot

ia
b

le
.  

T
he

 A
M

O
U

N
T

 C
E

R
T

IF
IE

D
 is

 p
ay

ab
le

 o
nl

y 
to

 th
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r

an
d

 th
at

 th
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is
 e

nt
it

le
d

 to
 p

ay
m

en
t o

f t
he

 A
M

O
U

N
T

 
na

m
ed

 h
er

ei
n.

  I
ss

ua
nc

e,
 p

ay
m

en
t a

nd
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t a
re

 w
it

ho
ut

 p
re

ju
d

ic
e 

to
 a

ny
C

E
R

T
IF

IE
D

.
ri

g
ht

s 
of

 th
e 

O
w

ne
r 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
un

d
er

 th
is

 C
on

tr
ac

t.

TO
TA

L

A
P

P
LI

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 F

O
R

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
A

IA
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 G

70
2

H
er

sh
ey

's
 M

ill
 E

st
at

es
 S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
Ea

st
 G

os
he

n 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y

M
ic

ha
el

 J
. E

lli
s,

 P
E

C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
s 

by
 O

w
ne

r

7T
H

 D
A

Y 
O

F 
N

O
V

EM
BE

R 
20

23
11
-0
7-
20
23

11
/8

/2
02

3



P
R

O
JE

C
T 

O
W

N
E

R
 :

3 
- F

IN
A

L
10

0.
00

%
P

R
O

JE
C

T 
:

07
-N

ov
-2

3
10

0
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 :

12
-S

ep
-2

3
23

8
27

-A
p

r-
23

17
-J

an
-2

3

B
ID

B
ID

B
ID

P
R

IO
R

 E
S

T
IM

A
TE

S
IN

C
R

E
A

S
E

 T
H

IS
 P

E
R

IO
D

TO
TA

LS
 T

O
 D

A
TE

IT
E

M
 Q

U
A

N
TI

TY
U

N
IT

 P
R

IC
E

A
M

O
U

N
T

  Q
U

A
N

TI
TY

A
M

O
U

N
T

  Q
U

A
N

TI
TY

A
M

O
U

N
T

Q
U

A
N

T
IT

Y
A

M
O

U
N

T
N

O
.

Q
T

Y
.

U
N

IT
1

1
LS

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

0.
75

15
,0

00
.0

0
0.

25
5,

00
0.

00
1.

00
20

,0
00

.0
0

2
1

LS
30

,0
00

.0
0

30
,0

00
.0

0
1.

00
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
3

1
LS

65
,0

00
.0

0
65

,0
00

.0
0

0.
75

48
,7

50
.0

0
0.

25
16

,2
50

.0
0

1.
00

65
,0

00
.0

0
4

1
LS

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
75

7,
50

0.
00

0.
25

2,
50

0.
00

1.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
5

5
E

A
5,

50
0.

00
27

,5
00

.0
0

4.
25

23
,3

75
.0

0
0.

75
4,

12
5.

00
5.

00
27

,5
00

.0
0

6
3

E
A

5,
70

0.
00

17
,1

00
.0

0
2.

25
12

,8
25

.0
0

0.
75

4,
27

5.
00

3.
00

17
,1

00
.0

0
7

45
3

LF
13

5.
00

61
,1

55
.0

0
17

4.
75

23
,5

91
.2

5
0.

00
0.

00
17

4.
75

23
,5

91
.2

5
8

1,
93

8
LF

10
0.

00
19

3,
80

0.
00

1,
83

6.
75

18
3,

67
5.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

83
6.

75
18

3,
67

5.
00

9
22

4
LF

10
0.

00
22

,4
00

.0
0

16
8.

00
16

,8
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

16
8.

00
16

,8
00

.0
0

10
25

0
LF

60
.0

0
15

,0
00

.0
0

11
1.

00
6,

66
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
11

1.
00

6,
66

0.
00

11
11

E
A

1,
90

0.
00

20
,9

00
.0

0
6.

50
12

,3
50

.0
0

1.
50

2,
85

0.
00

8.
00

15
,2

00
.0

0
12

1
LS

5,
50

0.
00

5,
50

0.
00

1.
00

5,
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

5,
50

0.
00

13
1

LS
10

,0
00

.0
0

10
,0

00
.0

0
0.

75
7,

50
0.

00
0.

25
2,

50
0.

00
1.

00
10

,0
00

.0
0

14
10

E
A

50
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
3.

00
1,

50
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3.

00
1,

50
0.

00
15

50
TN

15
0.

00
7,

50
0.

00
50

.0
0

7,
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

50
.0

0
7,

50
0.

00
16

35
LF

13
5.

00
4,

72
5.

00
58

.0
0

7,
83

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

58
.0

0
7,

83
0.

00
17

25
LF

14
0.

00
3,

50
0.

00
27

.0
0

3,
78

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

27
.0

0
3,

78
0.

00
18

1
LS

70
,0

00
.0

0
70

,0
00

.0
0

0.
50

35
,0

00
.0

0
0.

50
35

,0
00

.0
0

1.
00

70
,0

00
.0

0
19

12
0

LF
30

.0
0

3,
60

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
50

0
C

Y
25

.0
0

12
,5

00
.0

0
14

2.
79

3,
56

9.
75

0.
00

0.
00

14
2.

79
3,

56
9.

75
21

25
C

Y
20

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

54
.7

1
10

,9
42

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

54
.7

1
10

,9
42

.0
0

22
1

E
A

25
,0

00
.0

0
25

,0
00

.0
0

1.
00

25
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
1.

00
25

,0
00

.0
0

23
1

LS
17

,0
00

.0
0

17
,0

00
.0

0
1.

00
17

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

17
,0

00
.0

0
24

5
E

A
80

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

5.
00

4,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5.
00

4,
00

0.
00

A
1

6
E

A
5,

50
0.

00
33

,0
00

.0
0

4.
50

24
,7

50
.0

0
1.

50
8,

25
0.

00
6.

00
33

,0
00

.0
0

A
2

1
E

A
7,

50
0.

00
7,

50
0.

00
0.

75
5,

62
5.

00
0.

25
1,

87
5.

00
1.

00
7,

50
0.

00
A

3
13

2
LF

10
0.

00
13

,2
00

.0
0

99
.0

0
9,

90
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
99

.0
0

9,
90

0.
00

A
4

14
4

LF
10

5.
00

15
,1

20
.0

0
10

8.
00

11
,3

40
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
10

8.
00

11
,3

40
.0

0
A

5
7

E
A

-5
00

.0
0

-3
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
A

6
11

4
LF

90
.0

0
10

,2
60

.0
0

12
0.

00
10

,8
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

12
0.

00
10

,8
00

.0
0

A
7

40
LF

15
0.

00
6,

00
0.

00
40

.0
0

6,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
.0

0
6,

00
0.

00
A

8
10

LF
15

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

C
O

 #
1

1
LS

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

1.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

5,
00

0.
00

C
O

 #
2

1
LS

-7
8,

57
2.

00
-7

8,
57

2.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

$6
65

,6
88

.0
0

$5
83

,0
63

.0
0

$8
2,

62
5.

00
$6

65
,6

88
.0

0

TO
TA

L 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
D

U
E

   
   

$8
2,

62
5.

00
$6

65
,6

88
.0

0

R
E

TA
IN

A
G

E
0%

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

TO
TA

L 
LE

S
S

 R
E

TA
IN

A
G

E
$8

2,
62

5.
00

$6
65

,6
88

.0
0

R
E

LE
A

S
E

D
 R

E
TA

IN
A

G
E

$2
9,

15
3.

15

LE
S

S
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

$5
53

,9
09

.8
5

TO
TA

L 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
P

A
Y

A
B

LE
 

$1
11

,7
78

.1
5

$1
11

,7
78

.1
5

C
H

A
N

G
E

 O
R

D
E

R
 #

2 
- A

D
JU

S
T

IN
G

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 O
R

D
E

R

  T
O

T
A

L 
D

A
Y

S
 A

LL
O

W
E

D
 :

JO
A

O
 &

 B
R

A
D

LE
Y

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 C

O
., 

IN
C

.
P

E
R

IO
D

 E
N

D
IN

G
 :

D
A

Y
S

 U
S

E
D

 :

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

=

TO
TA

L 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 A

M
O

U
N

T
 :

6"
 H

D
P

E
 S

T
O

R
M

 S
W

R
 P

IP
E

24
" 

H
D

P
E

 W
/R

IP
R

A
P

 A
P

R
O

N
15

" 
H

D
P

E
 S

TO
R

M
 S

W
R

 P
IP

E
C

H
A

N
G

E
 O

R
D

E
R

 #
1 

- H
E

A
D

W
A

LL
 IN

S
T

A
LL

.

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==
==

==

E
A

S
T

 G
O

S
H

E
N

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
A

U
TH

O
R

IT
Y

IN
V

O
IC

E
 N

O
. :

  W
O

R
K

 C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D
 :

H
E

R
S

H
E

Y
'S

 M
IL

L 
E

S
TA

TE
S

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T

D
A

TE
 S

U
B

M
IT

TE
D

 :

8"
 C

90
0:

 M
H

 R
07

9 
- 

M
H

 R
08

0
D

E
D

U
C

T
: C

O
N

N
E

C
T

 T
O

 E
X

IS
T

 M
H

A
B

A
N

D
O

N
/R

E
M

O
V

E
 E

X
IS

T 
M

A
N

H
O

LE
S

TO
R

M
 S

W
R

 H
E

A
D

W
A

LL
TR

E
N

C
H

 P
LU

G
M

A
N

H
O

LE
D

R
O

P
 M

A
N

H
O

LE
 - 

M
H

 R
07

8
8"

 C
90

0:
 M

H
 R

07
5 

- 
M

H
 R

07
6

24
" 

H
D

P
E

 S
TO

R
M

 S
E

W
E

R
36

" 
H

D
P

E
 S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

S
IT

E
 R

E
S

T
O

R
A

TI
O

N
   

   
   

   
   

R
E

P
LA

C
E

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
M

IS
C

 E
X

C
A

V
R

O
C

K
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

6"
 a

nd
 8

" 
C

90
0 

- L
A

TE
R

A
LS

R
E

P
LA

C
E

 C
LE

A
N

O
U

T
S

C
O

F
FE

R
D

A
M

B
Y

P
A

S
S

 P
U

M
P

IN
G

C
O

N
N

E
C

T 
TO

 E
X

IS
T 

M
A

N
H

O
LE

R
IP

 R
A

P
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
E

W
A

TE
R

IN
G

N
E

W
 M

A
N

H
O

LE
R

E
P

LA
C

E
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 M

A
N

H
O

LE
8"

 C
90

0 
- 2

A
 B

A
C

K
F

IL
L/

IM
P

O
R

T
 S

O
IL

8"
 C

90
0 

- S
U

IT
A

B
LE

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L
12

" 
C

90
0 

- S
U

IT
A

B
LE

 B
A

C
K

FI
LL

C
O

M
P

LE
TI

O
N

 :
N

O
TI

C
E

 T
O

 P
R

O
C

E
E

D
 :

IT
E

M
  D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

M
O

B
 &

 D
E

M
O

B
TR

E
E

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L 
&

 S
IT

E
 P

R
E

P
E

&
S






















































































































	November 13, 2023



